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Commander’s Report 
By Doug Garnett 

 
2014 has only three and a half months left.  It seems these 
past months have flown by.  The program from out 
September’s meeting brought up some a very good question.  
Is it The Right Thing – To Have “Another Look?”   Dr. 
Richard Montgomery spoke to the camp about some of the 
myths of the War of Northern Aggression.   
 
The first myth we discussed was “the war was over slavery”. 
Of course we know it was not.  Slavery only became a part of 
the war when Lincoln wanted to get reelected and getting the 
votes from abolitionists became necessary to win.   
 
The next myth Dr. Montgomery spoke about was, “only the 
north had men of color in their army”.  Another idea we 
know to be wrong.  Documents prove there were many more 
blacks serving as combat soldiers than previously thought.  
Many pension applications for blacks show alterations from 
“soldier” to “cook” or “teamster”.  The South not only had 
men of color but their ranks were integrated where the North 
was not.  Besides blacks there were American Natives who 
served along with many Hispanics.   The southern army was, 
indeed, one of color.    
 
It is easy to see, when reading the writings, why the SCV is 
an organization which is non racist.  The SCV is an 
organization which is based on patriotism, honor and the 
history of our ancestors who fought their homes, families and 
their rights.   It was handed to us, the descendants of those 
men, to keep alive their memories and their honor.  We are 
not to allow them to be swept from the memory of history.   
 
Forward the flag stand against those who would rewrite the 
history of the land stand against the 150 plus years of 
propaganda. 
 
 

Lee’s Dispatch is the official newsletter for the Sons of Confederate 
Veterans Captain Bob Lee Camp 2198 and is intended for the sole 
purpose of keeping the camp members and friends of the camp 
informed to the activities and news of Camp 2198.  Statements in 
this newsletter are those of the author and may not reflect the 
opinions of the Captain Bob Lee Camp, editor or of the National 
Sons of Confederate Veterans. Within articles or quotes written by 
outside authors mistakes in spelling, grammar or sentence structure 
are strictly those of the author and may be left as is.   
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Sep 20 Sophia Porter grave dedication, N of Pottsboro, TX           
2 PM hosted by Sherman Camp  
Sep 26-27 Gainesville “History Alive” Weekend Fri-Sat at 
Gainesville Airport  
Sep 27 West Hill Cemetery Comes Alive, Sherman, TX for 
info Linda Turner 903-271-1165  
Oct 11 Depot Days Gainesville, TX 

 
 

Editor’s note:  Our newsletter benefits every time our 
article contributor James Neel takes a trip.  Most of his trips 
involve some historical place.  No exception was his latest 
visit to the Washington D. C. area.  In this issue we have 
one article on Jubal Early’s Raid on Washington followed 
by a multi part article.   

 
 

Jubal Early's 1864 Raid on Washington, D. C. 
By James Neel 

 

Following the failure of Union Maj. Gen. Franz Sigel's 
force to secure the Shenandoah Valley in the opening 
moves of U.S. Grant's coordinated Overland Campaign 
beginning in May, 1864, Sigel was replaced by Virginia 
native Maj. Gen. David "Black Dave" Hunter.  
 

 
Lt. General Jubal Early 

 

Continued on page 2A 
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Continued from page 1B 
 
Hunter moved resolutely southward up the Valley, smashing 
the outnumbered Confederate defenders at Piedmont and 
capturing and plundering Lexington and torching Virginia 
Military Institute there before crossing the Blue Ridge to 
threaten the major supply and rail center at Lynchburg. 
Hunter had been aided in all this when, following Sigel's 
defeat at New Market, most of the defenders of the Valley 
had been withdrawn to aid Robert E. Lee's army outside 
Richmond at Cold Harbor. 
 

Belatedly recognizing the threat presented by Hunter and his 
relatively small army, Lee decided on a bold gamble to 
regain the lost territory. Returning the defenders under Maj. 
Gen. John C. Breckinridge, Lee added to them almost one 
third of his own army, the Second Corps commanded by 
newly-promoted Lt. Gen. Jubal Early who was given three 
assignments: 1) Drive Hunter from the Valley, securing its 
harvests for the Confederacy; 2) Invade Maryland and wreck 
the Baltimore & Ohio ( B&O ) Railroad and Canal 
supplying Washington, D. C., from the west; and 3) ) If 
possible, capture the Federal capital, recently weakened by 
transfer of troops to replace Grant's losses in the Overland 
Campaign. 
 

It proved to be a surprisingly easy matter to repel Hunter, 
who had grown overcautious and feared he, was severely 
outnumbered once he discovered he was facing not the local 
militia he thought, but Early's veterans. In truth, the once-
powerful Second Corps had shrunk to a third of its size just 
the previous year at Gettysburg - only about 8,000 men - 
about the size of a full-strength division. Deciding that 
"Discretion was the better part of Valor", Black Dave beat a 
hasty retreat to the west which effectively removed him 
from the scene of action for almost a month. 
 

 
 

Attempting to fulfill Lee's instructions, Early led his force 
into the Shenandoah after Hunter, but soon turned northward 
towards Harpers Ferry (above), now garrisoned by a small 
force under the failed Franz Sigel. Rather than attempt to 
occupy the entire defensive position there, the outnumbered 
Sigel pulled all his men into a small perimeter on Camp Hill, 
dominated by the large brick offices and residences once 
occupied by officials of the Harpers Ferry Arsenal and 
Armory.  

The Lockwood House, below, served several times as a 
headquarters during the periods of Union occupation. 
 

 
 

Not wishing to take the time necessary to invest Sigel's 
position and lacking the artillery necessary to force a Union 
surrender in the manner of Stonewall Jackson two years 
earlier, Early chose to instead bypass Harpers Ferry and 
cross the South Mountain range through the very passes that 
had witnessed severe struggles during the Antietam 
Campaign in Sept., 1862.  
 
Turner's, Fox's, and Crampton's Gaps again felt the tread of 
marching columns; below, the War Correspondents' 
Memorial Arch at Crampton's. 

 

 
 
Early's route to the Capital seemed open to his small army 
of now perhaps 12 - 15,000 men, as his three original 
divisions, led by Maj. Gen. John B. Gordon, Maj. Gen. 
Robert E. Rodes, and Brig. Gen. Stephen D. Ramseur, were 
joined by the addition of Breckinridge's Division; the 
remnants of the force defeated at Piedmont, now under Brig. 
Gen. John C. Vaughn; and a couple of mixed cavalry 
brigades under Bradley T. Johnson and John McCausland. 
All was not as it seemed however, since a scratch force of 
Federals was waiting for them south of Frederick, Maryland, 
under department commander Maj. Gen. Lew Wallace who 
had rushed them by rail from Baltimore in order to protect 
the B&O rail junction near the Monocacy River. 
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Continued from page 3B 
 

 
 

Wallace's small force of some 3,000 was swelled by the 
addition of Union reinforcements sent by Grant from near 
Petersburg, the 3,000-man VI Corps division of Maj. Gen. 
James B. Ricketts. With roughly half the force disposed by 
Early, Wallace decided to offer battle at Monocacy Despite 
stiff resistance all through the afternoon of July 9, Wallace 
was finally forced to retreat back in the direction of 
Baltimore, once more leaving open to Early the way to 
Washington. 
 

 
 

As Early's small army approached the Federal capital, 
commanders there were thrown into momentary panic as 
they attempted to find enough troops to man the depleted 
forts and batteries which ringed the town making it possibly 
the most heavily fortified place on earth. As had become his 
custom, Abraham Lincoln was residing with his family in 
the so-called "Cottage" at the Soldiers' Home near Fort 
Totten on the northern defense line.  Responding to the 
threat, Lincoln returned to the White House, but was soon 
visiting nearby Fort Stevens, northernmost of the forts 
ringing Washington. 
 

 
 

Early deployed the leading division of Robert Rodes which 
had largely sat out the fight at Monocacy, but the approach 
march had been too strenuous and tiring in the July heat and 
dust and his division had been too greatly weakened by 
straggling to do more than skirmish with the Federal 
defenders. The following day brought further evidence that 
additional reinforcements from Maj. Gen. Horatio Wright's 
VI Corps of Grant's army had arrived. Now it was Early's 
turn to withdraw, having accomplished another of his 
objectives: the weakening of Grant's force facing Lee 
outside Richmond and Petersburg.  
 

 
 

Hunter finally completed his march to return to the 
Maryland area and as senior officer there took command of 
the mixed forces assembled to confront Early's threat. Grant 
finally tired of this thorn in his side and made the trip to the 
Frederick area where on August 5, 1864, he met with 
Hunter, Wright, and other generals at the Thomas House 
(above) on the old Monocacy battlefield. Previously he had 
requested from Lincoln that the four individual departments 
and commands that had been affected by Early's actions be 
combined into one in order to reply successfully to future 
problems in the Valley and its environs. When he asked 
Hunter the present location of the Confederates and was told 
"I have no idea", Grant determined then to replace him with 
the 33-year-old Maj. Gen. Philip Sheridan, who was sent for 
immediately and arrived the following day. From then might 
be dated the end of "Jubal's Raid" and the beginning off 
Sheridan's Valley Campaign of 1864. 
 

 
Maj. Gen. David "Black Dave" Hunter. 
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The Defenses of Washington, D. C. 
A multi part article 

By James Neel 
 

 
 
There were around 68 forts or battery instillations protecting 
Washington D. C. during the war.  The following multi part 
article will examine five of these forts and the typical 
defense weapons.  
 
The instillations we will feature are, Forts Washington, 
Foote, Ward, Marcy and Stevens. 
 
At the beginning of the Civil War there was only a single 
fortification in place to protect the Federal capital, Fort 
Washington seen above, which had its origins in the 1808 
Fort Warburton built on the same site on the Maryland shore 
of the Potomac across from George Washington's estate, 
Mount Vernon. The British bypassed Warburton when they 
captured the city in 1814, but the successful defense of 
Baltimore in the same campaign encouraged the 
construction of this larger instillation. 
 
The secession of Virginia and threatened secession of 
Maryland in 1861 plunged the Federal Government and the 
administration of newly-elected President Abraham Lincoln 
into a panic over the security of the capital, necessitating the 
creation of a defensive ring that eventually included 68 forts, 
93 gun batteries, twenty miles of rifle pits, all connected by 
32 miles of military roads. These earthen works were erected 
in northern Virginia and Maryland as well as within the 
District of Columbia, and many remain today as silent 
reminders of the times that spawned them. 
 

This summer I had the opportunity to be in the area for 
several days and devoted time to locating and photographing 
several remaining examples. I purposely included well-
maintained and interpreted forts as well as others somewhat 
off the beaten path. This sample is by no means complete - if 
anyone would like to add other surviving examples I have 
omitted to these, please feel free to do so. 
 
Fort Washington 
Although not really considered a part of the Civil War 
defenses of Washington, Fort Washington continued to be 
garrisoned and improved and remained in service in various 
capacities well into the Twentieth Century. Visiting here 
also gives a better idea of the philosophy and development 
of fortifications in the Nineteenth Century. 
  

 
 
Fort Washington is not usually included among the Civil 
War-era defenses of Washington, D. C., but for a time it was 
the only defense of the National Capital. In 1808 - 9, its 
predecessor, Fort Warburton, was erected here on a spot on 
the Maryland shore of the Potomac just above Mount 
Vernon, a location recommended by the First President. The 
small fort went untested during the War of 1812, since 
British troops were landed on the Maryland Chesapeake 
shore instead and marched overland to capture the town and 
famously burn the White House and other public buildings. 
That incursion made it obvious that better protection was 
needed, so an enlarged Fort Washington soon replaced 
Warburton. 
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Continued from page 4B 
 
The installation here serves as a time capsule interpreting the 
development of both artillery and the defenses against it. 
The fort was continually occupied until 1872 when it was 
thought it and its guns had been made obsolete by 
developments during the Civil War. However, it was again 
remodeled by the U. S. Army Corps of Engineers as a 
platform for the turn-of-the Twentieth Century Endicott 
System of artillery. 
 

 
 

The Endicott System, the mountings of which can be seen 
above and below, fall outside the period I wish to consider, 
but can be described briefly. It consisted of huge breech-
loading cannon on retractable mountings that allowed them 
to be completely withdrawn during the loading process in 
order to provide maximum protection for the crews; the 
monster guns were then elevated back into their firing 
positions. The photo below shows at least three periods of 
use: the original brick pointed battery for flat trajectory 
firing at enemy ships on the Potomac; flanking center-pintle 
mounts for Civil War-era rifled cannon; and the concrete 
Endicott battery superimposed over the whole. 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Drawbridge over the dry moat leads to the main entrance to 
Fort Washington, begun in 1814 in the wake of the British 
invasion. Designed by Pierre Charles L'Enfant, designer of 
the layout of the Federal City, it was taken from his 
oversight in 1815 and entrusted to Lt. Col. Walker 
Armistead, brother of the defender of Fort McHenry at 
Baltimore, and father of future Confederate General Lewis 
Addison Armistead. It was not until Oct. 2, 1824, that the 
fort was declared completed though it was as yet unarmed 
with ordnance. 
 

 
 

Rear view of the entrance shows the parade ground and one 
of the twin barracks. 

 
 

The sally port, seen above and below looking out towards 
the lower Endicott battery, was a way for the garrison to 
leave the main fort to visit the outlying works if the fort was 
under fire. 
 
Continued on page 6A 
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Continued from page 5B 
 
The path below is called the covered way and provided some 
protection from converging artillery and small-arms fire; of 
course this was never tested here at Fort Washington. In the 
above photo the 1840's extension of the walls can plainly be 
seen; this was in response to the continual improvements in 
naval artillery which was considered to be the fort's most 
likely opponent. 
 

 
 

 
 

Display of cannon outside the second barracks demonstrates 
the development of Nineteenth-Century siege and garrison 
artillery from the smoothbore forty-two pounder guns at left 
to the rifled thirty-pounder Parrotts at right. At far left is a 
poor field howitzer on a damaged and rotting carriage minus 
its wheels. (Gun is the technical term for a cannon firing at a 
target using a flat trajectory like hitting a baseball; howitzers 
and mortars fire at an elevation similar to the action of 
lobbing a basketball.) 
 

Continued on page 7A 
 
This twenty-four pounder gun is mounted on a barbette 
carriage of the type prevalent at the beginning of the Civil 
War; guns such as these made up the top-tier armament of 
Fort Sumter in Charleston harbor. The wooden carriage was 
designed to elevate the smoothbore gun above the protecting 
walls; note the dolly wheels which allow it to be trained on a 
moving target like a ship in the river. Elevation was done by 
means of the wedge and elevating screw visible beneath the 
breach of the gun. This fort was designed to hold masses of 
guns so mounted: the iron pins or pintles that the carriages 
were to pivot on would've been in the center of each 
platform where the white blocks are visible. 
 

 
 

 
 

When I saw this brightly-polished six-pounder gun and 
twelve-pounder mountain howitzer I naturally thought they 
were reproductions used for NPS firing demonstrations, but 
on closer inspection they seem to be highly scrubbed 
originals made during the Mexican War by the N. P. Ames 
Manufacturing Company of Chicopee, Mass. Small-caliber 
field guns like these were also a part of the armament of 
permanent fortifications like Fort Washington in case an 
enemy penetrated the defenses and close-quarter combat 
became necessary. 
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Below, Fort Washington displays its best face to the 
Potomac side from the lower Endicott battery. 
 

 
 
Next month will be Fort Foote: 
 

 
 

And Fort Ward: 
 

 
 
 
 

Continued from page 6B 
 

 
 

Guns on carriages like this were positioned within the 
casemates within the walls of the fort and could be fired at 
long-range against ships in case the guns on the open parapet 
were damaged or knocked out or as this Flank Howitzer, 
used for close defense against attacking infantry. 
 

 
 

Outside the brick fort other buildings remain from 
occupation by the Army: above, the post commandant's 
house now serves as the museum and visitor center; below, a 
less fortunate late-Nineteenth-Century officer's quarters 
awaits an uncertain fate. Although administered today by the 
National Park Service, Fort Washington shows unmistakable 
signs of neglect and decay, especially in the form of 
creeping vegetation in the masonry fort itself which isn't 
evident in these photos, but is very much so in person. 
 

 
 


